FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
SKYLINE TOWERS NO. 2, 10TH FLOOR
52C3 LEESBURG PIKE
FALLS CHURCH, VIRGINIA 22041

23 JuL 1980
SECRETARY OF LABCR .+ Cvil Penalty Proceeding
M NE SAFETY ANDHEALTH :
ADM NI STRATI ON  ( MSHA) , . Docket Nos. Assessment Control Nos.
Petitioner
Ve - WEVA 80-124 46-01407-03042V
. Oga Mne
OLGA COAL COVPANY, :
Respondent : WEVA 80-125 46-02437-03007V
: WEVA 80-126 46- 02437- 03008
¢ WEVA 80-127 46-02437-03009v
¢ Oga Preparation Plant
: VEVA 80-128 46-05319-03009V
: Road Fork No. 2 Mne
DECI SI ON
Appear ances: Barbara Krause Kaufmann, Attorney, Office-of the Solicitor
U.S. Department of Labor, Philadel phia, Pennsylvania, for
Petitioner
Janes R Haggerty, Esq., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, for
Respondent .
Bef ore: Adm ni strative Law Judge Steffey

Pursuant to a notice of hearing issued March 21, 1980, a hearing in the
above-entitled proceeding was held on My 20, 1980, in Bluefield,
West Virginia, under section 105(d) of the Federal Mne Safety and Heal th Act
of 1977.

Upon conpl etion of introduction of evidence by the parties, | rendered
the bench decision which is reproduced below (Tr. 141-154):

The Petition for Assessment of CGvil Penalty in Docket
No. WEVA 80-124 was filed on January 25, 1980, and seeks to
have acivil penalty assessed for an alleged violation of
30 CF.R §75.200. In any civil penalty proceeding the
I ssues are whether a violation of a mandatory health or
safety standard occurred, and, If so, what civil penalty
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shoul d be assessed, bhased on the six criteria set forth
in section 110(1) of the Federal Mne Safety and Health
Act of 1977.

The first matter to be considered ia this proceeding
Insofar as the contested case is concerned, is whether a
violation of section 75.200 occurred.

CONTESTED CASE

DOCKET NO__ WEVA 80-124

| shall nake some findings of fact based on the evidence
which |'"ve heard today. Those findings will be set forth
under enumerated paragraphs.

1. On May 16, 1979, two coal mne inspectors went to
Respondent's Oga Mne. At that time, those two inspectors,
namely, James M. Qiver and Melvin L. Sperry, went to the
six north section, and specifically to the No. 2 pillar
split.

2. After examning the conditions that they saw in the
No. 3 pillar split, they jointly wote Oder No. 655146,
dated May 16, 1979, alleging that respondent had violated its
roof-control plan, and thereby had violated section 75.200,
because the continuous-m ning-nmachine had proceeded for a
di stance of 35.feet so as to bring the controls of the
conti nuousl ni ning machi ne beyond roof supports

3. Exhibit P-2 provides, in Paragraph 6, that "The
operator shall not advance the controls of the miner inby the
|l ast row of bolts and additional bolting shall be done if
necessary to keep the operator in conpliance and breaker
posts shall be extended to the last row of bolts during
mning of wing lifts."

4. The inspectors based the violation on nmeasurenents
of the intitial cut of coal in the pillar, and of the area
off to the right of the bolted portion of the entry, as
shown in Exhibits P-3 and P-5. The violation here is not
the normal one which is encountered in this-kind of situation,
because the area of unsupported roof under which the operator
of the continuouslnining machine proceeded was up the right
rib of the pillar block. The inspectors based their conclu-
sion that the operator of the continuous-mning nmachine had
cut along the right rib in a straight direction, parallel to
the right rib, on the fact that they saw ripper cutting marks
or bit marks, which were parallel to the right rib. They
additional |y made neasurements beyond the |ast row of roof
bolts to show that the last row of roof bolts was 17 feet
outby the face of the cut of coal which had been m ned.
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5. Respondent presented as-witnesses, the superintendent
of the mne and the operator of the continuous-nining nachine
on the evening shift, which was the one involved in the vio- :
lation cited in the inspectors' order. The operator of the '
conti nuous-m ning machine testified that he did not go out
from under supported roof in order to cut the coal, as it is
depi cted on Exhibit A. The operator of the continous-mning
machi ne stated that he had inadvertently started cutting a
wing off the initial split inthe pillar, and had cut about
one and maybe a little nore of another shuttle car of coa
when he realized that he had made a mistake. At that point
he backed up the continuous-n ning machine and noved it inby
that portion he had just cut, so as to begin cutting on the
wing at a more inby point in this No. 3 pillar split. The
operator stated that he had cut the coal out, as shown in the
green area on Exhibit A by the end of his shift, at which
time the roof fall occurred. And he backed the continuous-
m ning machine out of the No. 3 pillar split, and left the
section

|
|

| think that those are the primary findings | need to
make. A question of whether a violation of section 75.200
occurred nust be based on the painful process of determ ning
whi ch of the various witnesses' testinony is the nost
credible. There are several considerations that must be nmade
for me to find that a violation of section 75.200 occurred
and | shall explain themat this tine.

The operator of the continuous-m ning nachi ne was unabl e
to explain satisfactorily why an operator with 4 years of
experience would have failed to recognize that he had no need
to start taking a wing of coal out of a block, mdway in that
bl ock, when he was aware of the fact that a previous operator
had cut through the left side of the pillar at an opening which
shoul d have alerted the operator that the first wing of coa
to be cut would be in the sane area to which he eventually
went, and which is shown on Exhibit A in green

Anot her reason that |'ve elected to accept the inspec-
tors' testimony as nore credible than the operator's, is
that the operator's Exhibit A does not purport to explain
why the initial split had excess width, as conpared with the
red area, where the operator of the continuous-m ning machine
said he mstakingly made a cut. I cannot believe that the
i nspectors could have neasured the distance fromthe rib to
the last roof bolt on the left, in the four places shown on
Exhibits P-3 and P-5, w thout having established that the
right rib ran in a straight direction.
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Additional ly, the operator of the continuous-m ning
machi ne made no statenments concerning whether there were bit
marks running parallel to the right rib or running diagonally
a6 they should have run, if this red and green area shown
on Exhibit A had been mned in a diagonal fashion, as is
shown by the location of the continuous-mning machine on
Exhibit A

Al'so, the inspectors neasured the distance from the |ast
roof bolt to the ngst inby area of the pillar split with their
measuring tape and | do not believe they could have done that
without having been aware of whether there was. a roof fall in
the green area or not. As M. Kaufmann pointed out in her
closing statement, either there was not a roof fall there, or
it had been cleaned up before the inspectors arrived on the
scene

There was no testinony by any expert to rebut the
inspectors' claim that the cuts of the continuous-m ning
machine were parallel to the right rib. It is true that one
of the inspectors believed that the make of the continuous-
mning machine was a Joy machine, when in actuality it was a
Lee Norse machine, but | did not heat anyone claimthat the
Lee Norse machine would fail to make any marks parallel to
the rib, if the machine had been trammed while cutting in a
straight inby path, fromthe beginning of the pillar to the
last. portion that was cut by the continuous-mining machi ne.

There has been some discussion by respondent's attorney
as to the fact that Inspector Oiver seemed to think that this
pillar block was only 35 feet long, whereas it appears to have
been about 70 feet long. But | think that that is inmmaterial
when it comes to a question of whether the continuous-m ning
machine was out from under permanent supports

In any event, Inspector Sperry was very specific In
drawi ng Exhibit P-5, showi ng that' he depicted the posts which
were in the crosscut outby the No. 3 pillar; and he said he
was positive that the drawing he has on Exhibit P-5 shows the
outby area of the pillar. The drawing, which he nade very
carefully on Exhibit 5, does show all of the pillar which is
involved in the citation described in Order No. 655146.

For the reasons given above, | find that a violation of
section 75.200 occurred when the controls of the continuous-
m ning machine were advanced beyond permanent supports
Having found that a violation occurred, it is now necessary
to consider the six criteria. At least three of the criteria
may be given a general consideration, which will be applicable
to the settled cases as well as the contested case




————————

The parties entered Into some stipulations about at ;s
least two of the criteria. It was stated that respondent '
is subject to the jurisdiction of the Act, the Commission,
and the judges. It was also stipulated that the violation
alleged in Order No. 655146 was abated in a normal good faith
effort to achieve conpliance

It was stipulated that as to the size of respondent's
business that it produces 530,342 tons of coal per year; and
since respondent is an affiliate of Youngstown Sheet & Tube
Conpany, it may be considered to be a large operator. To the
extent that the size of the operator is considered in assessing
a penalty, | find that the penalty should be in an upper range
of magni tude.

The former Board of Mne Operations Appeals has held in
several cases that if respondent presents no financial data
it may be concluded that the paynent of a penalty would not
cause it to discontinue in business. Since no financial data
were presented in this case, | find that paynent of penalties
woul d not cause respondent to discontinue in business

As to the criterion of the history of previous viola-
tions, counsel for the Secretary of Labor has stated that she
will mail to me a conputer printout in the near future, and
will send a copy of it to counsel for respondent. And If he
does not notify me of any errors that he thinks exists in the
conputer printout, | shall subsequently add to the witten
decision, which is mailed to the parties, a consideration of
the criterion of history of previous violations.

A El-page conputer printout listing alleged violations
for which respondent has already paid penalties was sent to
me on May 24, 1980. That 21-page docunent is marked for
identification as the Secretary of Labor's Exhibit P-6 in
this proceeding and is received in evidence. Counsel for
respondent has not notified me that he has found any errors
in Exhibit P-6. Therefore, it will be used to evaluate the
criterion of history of previous violations

Exhibit P-6 shows that respondent has previously violated
section 75.200 on 52 occasions. Sixteen of the violations
occurred in 1977, 28 occurred in 1978, and 8 violations had
occurred In 1979 by May 9, 1979. Since roof falls still
account for a large percentage of the injuries and deaths
which occur each year in underground mnes, | consider it to
be a serious matter when an operator has a long list of viola-
tions of section 75.200, especially if the violations have an
upward trend, as they do in this case, because there is an
increase from16 violations in 1977 to 28 in 1978. Therefore,
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the penalty otherw se assessable under the other five criteria
for this violation of section 75.200 will be Increased by $500
under the criterion of history of previous violations

As to the criterion of gravity, there was considerable
testimony by the inspectors to the effect that the roof condi-
tions in the six north section were substandard, in that there
was heaving of the bottom and sone cracking in the roof, and
that going out from under the roof bolts would be a hazardous
act for a person to make. Consequently, | find that the viola-
tion was serious.

As to the criterion of negligence, the evidence does not
show that the section foreman on the second shift was aware
of the fact that the continuous-mning machine had been used
in the fashion that it was. There is evidence that this
particular split on the No. 3 pillar was sonething that was
witten up by the preshift examner. And there's been some
testinony that danger boards had been erected outby the
pillar. The inspectors did not see the danger board, but it
Is alleged that the preshlft exam ner had put one up. So, at
| east an effort had been made to alert people to the possi-
bility that this was a dangerous area. Now, for that reason
| find that there was not a large degree of negligence

Consi dering that respondent is a large operator, that
paynent of penalties will not cause respondent to discontinue
In business, that there was a normal good faith effort to
achieve rapid conpliance, that the violation was serious
and that there was a |ow degree of negligence, a penalty of
$1,000 woul d have been assessed, but as indicated above, the
penalty of $1,000 will be increased by $500 to $1,500 because
of respondent's adverse history of previous violations of
section 75.200.

APPROVAL OF SETTLEMENTS

DOCKET NO_ WEVA 80-125

The violation here involved was an all eged violation of
30 C.F.R. § 77.202, which prohibits the existence of coal-dust
accumul ations in dangerous amounts. Order No. 655348, issued
May 30, 1979, cited a violation of section 77.202 because fl oat
coal dust was present on all four levels of the crusher build-
ing, ranging in depths of up to 18 inches. The notion for
approval of settlenents states that respondent has agreed to
pay the full penalty of $800 proposed by the Assessment Ofice
in this instance, because the facts show that possible ignition
sources existed in the area of some of the accumulations. Some
mtigating factors were that the accunul ations existed on sur-
face facilities where there was little danger that dust would
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accumul ate in a hazardous anount, and that sone steps were
being taken to clean up the accunulations at the time the
order was witten. Therefore, the violation was not as
serious as it would have been if it had occurred underground,
and respondent was not as negligent as it would have been if
no steps to clean up the accumul ations had been taken

| find that the Assessment Ofice determned an appro-
priate penalty, and that respondent's agreement to pay the
full anmount proposed by the Assessment Office should be
appr oved.

DOCKET NO. WEVA 80-126

The single violation of section 103(f) of the Act
invol ved in Docket No. WEVA 80-126 was alleged in Gtation
No. 654849, which stated that respondent failed to pay a
m ner who wal ked around with an inspector. The Assessment
O fice considered the violation to be nonserious, to be
associ ated with ordinary negligence, and proposed a penalty
of%§14. Respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty
of $52.

The notion for approval of settlenent states that the
reduced penalty is justified because respondent acted in good
faith under its interpretation of section 103(f), namely
that respondent was obligated to pay only one representative
under the wal karound provisions of section 103(f) of the Act.

| find that respondent's agreement to pay a reduced
penalty of $52 should be approved, because respondent was not
as negligent, in the circumstances, as the Assessnent Office
bel i eved when it proposed a penalty of $114 based primrily
on attributing 10 penalty points under the criterion of
negligence pursuant to 30 CF.R § 100. 3.

DOCKET NO._ WEVA 80-127

Three violations of section 77.202 are involved in
Docket No. WEVA 80-127. The first violation of section
77.202.was alleged in Gtation No. 654835, because the
I nspector asserted that float coal dust had accumul ated on
all three levels of the crusher building in depths of up to
3 inches. The notion for approval of settlenent says that
the Assessment OFfice's proposed penalty of $500 is exces-
sive, and that respondent's agreenent to pay $375 is justi-
fied, because respondent has a clean-up plan under which the
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crusher building is washed down every three shifts, which had
the effect of making the crusher building danp, and reducing
the Iikelihood of fire or explosion. Additionally, the accu-
nmulations were less than 3 inches in depth, except in a few
locations. It is said that these facts reduced the probability
of fire, and also the degree of negligence

The second violation of section 77.202 was cited in O der
No. 654837, which alleged existence of float coal dust up to
6 inches in depth in the skip hoist facility. Respondent has
agreed to pay a penalty of $450 instead of the penalty of $600
proposed by the Assessnent COffice. The notion for approval of
settlenment states that a reduced penalty is justified because
the accumul ations were less than 1 inch in all but a few |oca-
tions, that there were no mners in the area described in the
order, and that there were no ignition sources in the area

The third violation of section 77.202 was cited in Oder
No. 654847 which alleged that float coal dust up to 1 inch
in depth had accunulated at several places In the man hoi st
facility. The notion for approval of settlement states that
a reduced penalty of $600 is warranted instead of the penalty
of $800 proposed by the Assessment COffice, because further
investigation has indicated that the accunulations were |ess
than 1 inch in depth in nearly all instances. The notion
avers that that fact warrants a conclusion that respondent
was not as negligent, and that the violation was not as
serious as it had been considered to be by the Assessnent
Ofice

| have found in prior cases that inspectors do not con-
sider accumulations on the surface as serious as underground
accunul ations.  Therefore, | find that satisfactory reasons
have been given for accepting respondent's offer to pay
reduced penalties for the three violations of section 77.202
invol ved in Docket No. VEVA 80-127.

DOCKET _NO__WEVA 80-128

Two violations areinvolved in Docket No. WEVA 80-128.
The first violation was of section 75.200, alleged in Gta-
tion No. 655224, which stated that respondent had failed to
follow the provisions of its roof-control plan, because no
tenporary supports had been installed in the face area of the
Nos. 1 and 2 entries after conpletion of the mning cycle.
The motion for approval of settlement states that the No. 1
entry had been driven 19 feet inby pernmanent supports, and
that the No. 2 entry had been driven 21 feet inby permanent
supports, and that there were cracks in the roof. Since the
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viol ation was serious and involved a high degree of negli-
gence, the notion statesthat respondent has appropriately

agreed to pay the full penalty of $1,000 proposed by the
Assessnment O fi ce.

The second violation in this docket was cited in O der
No. 655225 which stated that respondent had viol ated section
75. 326 because belt haul age air was being used to ventilate
the active working section. The notion for approval of settle-
ment states that respondent's offer to pay a reduced penalty of
$500 instead of the $1,000 penalty proposed by the Assessment
Ofice is justified because, although belt haul age air was
used to ventilate the working face, the air had reached the
wor ki ng face because respondent had been forced to renmove a
permanent stopping in order to bring in supplies needed for
installing a new conveyor belt. The belt could not have been
installed wthout renoving the stopping

At the time the order was witten, the conveyor belt was
not being operated. The 'notion states that the aforementioned
facts show that the violation was not as serious and did not
invol ve as much negligence as the Assessment Office believed
to exist when it proposed the penalty of $1,000.

| find adequate reasons have been given to approve
respondent's agreenent to pay $1,000 and $500, respectively,
forthe violations ofsections 75.200 and 75.326 involved in
Docket No. WEVA 80-128.

Summary of Assessnents

Based on all the evidence of recordand the aforesaid findings of fact,

or the parties' settlement agreement, the following civil penalties should

be assessed:

Docket No. WEVA 80-124

Oder No. 655146 5/16/79 § 75.200cece0es(Contested)essese$ 1,500.00

Settl| enment Agreenents

Docket No. WEVA 80-125

O’del’ l\b 655348 5/30/79 s 77.2020oo-o-oo-ooo-o.oooooo--os 800 00

Docket No. WEVA 80-126

C|tat|0n ’\b 654849 4/23/79 5 103(f)onooo-o--o..-ooo-ooons 52 00

Docket No. WEVA 80-127

Gtation l\b. 654835 a,3/79 s 77.202.'..'.............l...s 375-00
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Order No. 654837 &4/4/79 § 77.202 @ **x xxx . ..., $ 450.00

Order No. 654847 4/17/79 § 77.202 . . . . . ... .. ... ... ... 600. 00

Total Penalties in Docket No. WEVA 80-127....c¢4s004.$ 1,425.00
Docket No. WEVA 80-128

Gtation l\b- 655224 6/22/795 75.200..I....'...I.........s 1’000.00
Order No. 655225 6/22/79 § 75.326. ... ... ... .............. 500. 00

TOt a.l Penaltl es | n [bCket NOO V\EVA 80‘12800.0....-.-$ 1,500000

Total Settlement and Contested Penalties in
This Proceeding......... .. ... . .. ... .. . . ., $ 5,277.00

WHEREFORE, it is ordered:

(A) The parties' requests for approval of settlement are granted and
the settlement agreements submtted in this proceeding in Docket Nos.
WEVA 80-125, WwEVA 80-126, WEVA 80-127, and WEVA 80-128 are approved.

(B) Pursuant to the parties' settlement agreenents and the bench
decision rendered in the proceeding in Docket No. WEVA 80-124, respondent
shall, within 30 days fromthe date of this decision, pay civil penalties
totaling $5,277.00 as set forth in the paragraph under Summary of Assess-
ments above.

. a
Richard c. Steffey
Adm nistrative Law Judge

(Phone:  703-756- 6225)

Distribution:

Barbara Krause Kaufmann, Attorney, Ofice of the Solicitor, US.
Departnent of Labor, Room 14480-Gateway Buil ding,
3535 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19104 (Certified Mil)

Janes R. Haggerty, Esq., Attorney for Oga Coal Conpany,
3 CGateway Center, Pittsburgh, PA 15263 (Certified Mil)




